BEFORE THE

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Tn the Matter of the First Amended Accusation
Against: Case No. 5636
RXCHANGE CO., OAI No. 2016050685
STEPHEN M, COSTA, President,
MOHAMMAD M. SALEMI, Director,
and DRIC SRBUHI TONELYAN STIPULATED SETTLEMENT
2545 N. Ontario Street AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER RE
Burbank, CA 91504 SRBUHI TONELYAN ONLY
Wholesale Permit No. WLS 5795
and
SRBUHI TONELYAN
219 E. Garfield Avenue, #4

- (Glendale, CA 91205
Certificate Number EXC 18823
Respondents.
DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement of License and Order is hereby adopted by the Board

of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on August 30, 2017.

It is so ORDERED on July 31, 2017.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President



L || XAVIER BECERRA
, Attorney Genert] of California
2 [ ARMANDO ZAMBRANO '
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
- 3 i NaNcy A.KAISER
Deputy Aftorney General .
4 || State Bar No. 192083 f
300 So. Spring Street, Suife 1702 !
5 Los Angeles, CA 90013
: Telephone: (213) 897-5794
6 Facsimile! (213) 897-2804 [
g Attorneys for Complainant |
8 BEFORE THE
' BOARD OF PHARMACY
9 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER: AI‘FAIRS
10 STATE OF CALIFORNIA
1T §| Inthe Maiter of the First Amended Accusation | Case No. 5636
: Agamst ' .
12 , OAH No. 2016050685
3 RXCHANGE %0., : .
STEPHEN M, COSTA, President, STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
MOHAMMAD M, SALEMI, Director, 'DISCIPLINARY ORDER RE SRBUHI
14 || and DRIC SRBUHY TONELYAN TONELYAN ONLY '
2545 N. Ontario Street
15 || Burbank, CA 91504
16 || Wholesale Permit No. WLS 5795
17 i and. -
18 || SRBUHI TONELYAN
219 K. Garfield Avenue., f#4 f
19 || Glendale, CA 91205
20 || Certificate Number EXC 18823
2] Respomdents.
23 IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-
24 {| entitled proceedings that the following matters aré true:
25 PARTIES '
26 1."  Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy
27 || (Board). She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is représented in this matier by
28
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Xavier Becerra, Attomey General of the State of California, by'Nancy A, Kaiser, Deputy
Attorney General.

2. _ Respondent Srbuhi Tonelyan (Respondent) is represented in this proceeding By
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attorney David Gurnick, whose address is Lewitt Hackman, 16633 Ventura Blvd. #1 100, Encino,
CA 91436, '
3 Oner about September 24, 2006, the Board issued Designated Repfesantative

Ligense No. EXC 18823 to Srbuhi Tonelyan (Respondent). The Designated Representative

- License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to ihe charges brought in Accusation No. |

- 5636, and will expire on S¢ptember 1, 2017, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

4, Accusation No, 5.636 was filed before the Board, and is currently pending against
Respondent, The Accusation and aif olther statutorily fequired documents were properly servcﬁ
on Respondent on April 6, 2016, and was subsmumtly amended and served on Respondent.
Respmident timely filed her Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation.

5. A copy of Aceusation No. 5636 is attached as exhibit A gmd incprporatcd‘hérein by

reférenoe.
ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

6. RGSpéndent tas carei‘ully read, fully discussed with coumnsel, and understands the
charges and allegations in Accusation No., 5636. Respondent has al::;c) carefully read. fully
aisctlssed with counsel, and understands the cffects of thié Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order, |

7. Respondent is fully aware of her legal righté in thig matter, including the right to 4
hearing on the.charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right 1o confront and cross-examine
the witnesses against her; the right to present evidence and to testify on her own behalf; the right
to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of |
documents; the right to reconsidération and court review of an adverse deciston; and all other

rights accerded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.
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8. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth above.

CULPABILITY.
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9. Respondent understands and agrees that the charges and allegations in Accusation

No. 5636, if proven at a hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline upon her Designated

Representative Licenee

10.  For the purpose of resolvmg the Accusation without the expensc and uncertainty of
further proceedmgs Respondent agrees that, at a hearing, Complamant could ostabhsh a factual
basis for the charges i in the Accusation, and that Respendent hereby gives up her right to contest
those charges,

11, Respondent agtees that her Designated Represeritative License is subj;:ct to discipline
ahd she agrees. to be bound by the Board’s peraﬁozlary terms as set forth in the Dis,ciﬁfinary

Order below.
CONTINGENCY

12. | . This stipﬁ[at'ion shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pham}acy Respc;ndent
understands and agrees that counsel for Complamant and the staff of the Board of Pharmacy may
communicate dlrectly w:th the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement without notice to
or parllupauon by Respondent or her counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondent )
understands and agrees that she may not withdraw her agreement or seck to rescind the stipulation
prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. Ii the Board fails to adopt this stipulation
as its Decision and Order the Stipulated Settlement,and Dlsmplmary Order 'shall be of no force or

effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible i in any legal dction bctwcen the pames,

arid the Board shall not bc disqualified from further action by having censidered this matter.

13.  The parties urdesstand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile

“copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinarg}. Order, including PDF and facsimile

signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the origiﬁais.

14. ‘This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties fo be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agresment.
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It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,

1
2 ncgotiations,‘and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and »Di;sciplinary
3 Ol_'der may not be alterecl,‘amended, mo.diﬁe'd, suppleménted, or otherwise changed exaei)f by a
. 4 || writing executed by an authorized representative of eaqh ;:>f the parties.
l 5 15. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that.
6 |i the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
1 I Disciplinary Order: | |
8 | DISCIPLINARY ORDER o
g IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that ljesignated Representative License No. EXC 18823 issued
iO | to Res’pohclent Srbuhi Tonelyan is revo’ked. However, the yevoc‘ation is stayed and Responder;f is
11 || placed on probation for five (5) years on the following terms and conditions. ‘
12. 1. Obey All Lavws "
13, Respondent shall obey alt state and federal laws and regulations. |
14 Respondent shall report any of the fo}li_owing occurrences to the Boa‘rd, in writing, within
15 |l seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence: '
16 [ an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any
17 provision of thé Pharmacy Lav;, state and federal food and drug laws, of state and
. 1 8 federal controlled substancés laws
19 7] an arrest or issuance of a criminal cdmplaint’ for violation of any state or
20 federal law
21 {} apleaof guilty or nqlo contendre in.any state or federal criminal
22 p_roc':eeding to any criminal complaint, information or indictrent
23 il .a conviction of any crime f
24 | [:I discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by_any state or
25 federal agency whicﬁ involves Respondent’s Designated Representative License or -
26 * which is related to the préctice of pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling
27 or distribution or billing or charging for of any drug, devicé or controlled substance.
28 ' Failure to timely 1'ép0ﬂ any such occurrence shall be considered a violation ofprobatilon.
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2. Report o the Board
Respondent shall report {o the Board quarterly, on a schedule aé directed by the Boaid or

its designée. The report shall be made cither in persen or in writing, as directed. Among other
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| with the Board or its designes, upon request at such intervals and locations as are determined by

| probation. Failure to cooperate shali be considered a violation of probation.

| on Respondent by the.decision, as follows:

' designated representative-in-charge (including each new designated representative-in-charge

requirements, Respondent shall stite in éach report under penalty of perjury whether there has
been compliance withl all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure to subrmit .timely.re'po_rﬁs
in a form as.directed shall be considpred a violation of probation. Any period(s) of delinquency
in submission of reports as directed may be ‘add-ed to the total period of probation. Moreover, if
the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall be automatically extended until
such time as the final repo;“t is made and accepted by the Board. a

3, Enterview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, Responident shall appear in person for interviews

the Board or its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification
o Board staff, or fatlure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled inferviews with the Board or‘its
designee during the period of probation, shall bp considered a violation of probation.

4, Cooperate with Board Staff .

Respor}dent shall cooperate with the-Board's inépecti_oh program and with the Board's

monitoring and investigation of Respondent's compliance with the terms and conditions of her

5. Notice to Employers ~
During the period of probation, Respondent shall riotify all present and prospective

employers of the decision in case number 5636 and the terms, conditions and restrictions imposed

Within thirty (30) days of the effestive date of thiis decision, and within fifteen (15} da)}s of

Respondent undertaking any new employment, Respondent shall cause her direct supervisor,

employed during Respondent’s tenure of employment) and owner to report to the Board in

writing acknowledging that the listed individual(s) has/have read the decision in case number

5
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5636 and terms and conditions imiposed thereby. It shall be Respondent’s vesponsibility to ensure
that her employer(s) and/or"supex'w'sm'(s) submit timely acknowlédgement(s) to the Board.

If Respondent works for or is employed by or through a pharmacy employment service,

R S B L N T S T T . ‘ -
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Respondent must notify her direct supervisor, designated representative-in-charge and owner at

each entity licensed by the Board of the terms and conditions of the decision in case number 5636,

in advance of the Respondent commencing work at each licensed entity. A record of this

notification must be provided to the Board upon request.

Furthermore, within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen

(15) days of Respondent undertaking any new employment by or through a pharinacy
employment service, Respondent shall cause her direct supervisor with the pharmacy
employment servicerto report to the Board in writing acknowledging that she has read the
decision in odse number 5636 and the terrlns and conditions imposed thereby. It shall be the
Respondent’s responsibility to ensure that her employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit timely
acknowledgment(s) fo the Board. '

Failu_re to timely notify present or prospective employer(s) or to cause thatfthose

employet(s) to submit timely acknowledgements to the Board shalt be considered a violation of

probation,

“Employment” within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time,

part-time, temporary or relief sérvice or pharmacy management service as a

designated representative or in any position for which a designated representative

license 15 a requirement or criterion for employment, whether the Respondent is

considered an employee.or independent contractor or volunteer. 7

0. No Beir;g Designated Representative-in-Charge

During the period of probation, Respondent shall not be the designated representative-in-
charge of any eﬁtity licensed by the Board unless o.therwise specified in this order. Assumption
of any such unauthorized supervision responsibilities shall be considered a violation of probation.

7. Reimbursement of Board Costs .

As a condition precedent to successful completion of probation, Respondent shall pay to

6
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make said payments pursuant to a Board épprovéd payment plan. There shall be no deviation

the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution in the amourit of $2,143.71. Respondent shall

from this schedule absent prior written approval by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay costs

— —
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\ by the deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation.
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the license, Respondent will no longer be subject to.the terms and conditions of probation. This

The filing of bankruptcy by Respoﬁdent shall not relieve Respondent of her responsibility
to reimburse the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution. .

8. - . Probation Monitoving Costs

Respondent'shall pay aniy costs associated with probation monitoring as determined by the
Board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payabie to the Board on.a schedule
as directed by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay such cosls by the deadline(s) as directed
shall be considered a violation of probation. |

9. Siatus of License

~ Respondent shall, atall times while on probation, maintain an active, current designated |

representative license with the Board, including any period durinng which suspension or probatibn
is tolled. Failure to maintain an active, ewrrent Iicéng.e shéll be considered a violation of
probation.

" I Respondent's designated-l;fcpresentative license expires or is cancclléd by 'qperation‘_of
law of‘otherwi—se at any time during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof due
to tolling or otherwise, upon renewal or reapplication Respondent's license shall be subject to all
terms and conditions of this prébaition not previously satiéﬁed.- “

10. License Surrender While on Probation/Suspenston

Following the ef’r‘ectivé date of this decision, should Respondent cease work due o
retirement or health, or be otherwmc unable to satisfy the terms and conditwm of probation,
Respondent may tender her des:gnaied 1epreseutat1ve license to the Board for surrender. The
Board or its designee shall have the discretion ‘whether to grant the request for surrender or take,

any other action it deems appropnate and reasonable. Upon formal acoeptance of the surrender of

i
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surrer;der canstitutes a record of discipline and shall become a péﬂ‘ of the Respondent’s license

‘history with the Board

Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent shall relmqu:sh her dcs:gnated
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representative l!cense to the Board within ten (10} days of notification by the Board that the
surrender i is acoepted. Respondent may not reapp]y for any licenise, permit, or registration from
the Board for thee (3) years from the effective date of the surrender. Respondent shall meet all
requirements applicable to the license sought as of the date the application for that license is
submitted.to the Board. '

11 : Notification of 2 Change in Name, Residence Adﬁress, Mailing Address or
Employment , :

Respondent stiall notify the Board in {Jvriting within ten (10) 'days of any chénge of

| c?mpldyment. Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving and the address of the new

employer, supervisor anc_i owner and work schedule, if known. Respondent ‘shall further notify
the Board in writing within ten {13 da}.rs of a change in name, residence address and mailing
éddress or-phone number,

Failure to timely notify the Board of any change in employer(s), name(s) address(es)
phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

12, Tolling of Probation

. Except during periods of suspension, Respondent shall at all times whlle on probation, be

employed 4s & designated representative in Cahfomla for a minimun of 30 hours per calendal

menth, Any month during which this minimuin is not met shall toll the period of probation, i.e.,

- the pef"i'od of probation shall be exterided by one month for each month during which this

minimum is not met, During any such period of tolling of probation, Respondént must

24" || nonetheless comply withall terms and conditions of probation.

‘Shouid Respondent regardless of residency, for any reason {including vacatlon) cease
working as 2 designated representatwe for a minimum of 30 hc_nurs in California, Respondent must
notify the Board in writing within ten (16} days of cessation of work and must fufther notify the
Board in writing within ten (10) days of the gesun‘zpti@n of work, An.y failire to provide such

8
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notification(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

I is a-vielation of probation for Respondent's probation to remain tolled pursuant to the

- provisions of this condition for a total period, counting consecutive and non-consecutive montls,
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exceeding thirty-six (36) months.
"Cessation of work" means any calendar month during wh.ich Respondenf is.

not working as a designatéd representative for at least 30 _lm"u'rs asa Hesi‘gnated

representative as defined by Business and Professilons Céde section 4053,
“Resumption of work” means any calendar month during which Respondent is
working as a designated représentative for at Jeast 30 hours as a designated |
representative as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4053,

13.  Violation of Probation |

If Respondent has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the board shall

| have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent, and probation shall autorhatically be extended,

until all terms and conditions have been satistied o:.' the board has taken other action as deemed
appropriate to treat the failu'fe to comiply as a violaltion of probation, to terminaie pro'batiqn, ang
to impose the penalty that was stayed. | .

If Respondent violates prebation in any respect; the board, after‘ giving Responderit notice
and an opportinity to be heard, may revoke probatio-n and carry out the disciplinary order that
was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for those provisions stating that a |
violation theieof may 1eaa to automatic termination of the stay and/or revocation of the license. If

a petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against Respondent during probation, the

{ board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be automatically

. extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided, and the charges!

and allegations in the Accusation shall be deemed true and correct.

14.  Completion of Probation

Upon written notice by the Bdard indicating successful completion of probation, -
Respondent's designated representative license will‘be fully restored.

~
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15.  No Ownership of Licensed Premises.

g
2 ‘Respondent shall not ;;)Wn, have any legal or beneficial interest in, or serve as a managet,
3 || administrator, member, officer, director, trustee, associate, or partner of any business, tirm,
4 || partnership, or corporation cuncntly or hereinatter hccnsed by the Board. Respondent shall sell
5 1l or transfer any-legal or beneficial interest in any efitity licensed by the Board within ninety (90)
'. 6 || days following the effective date of this degnsmn and shall immediately thereafter pxovnde written
7 {1 proof thereof to the Board. Failure to timely divest any legal or beneficial interest(s) or provide
g documcntahon thereof shall be considered a violation of probatmn '
9 16. Remedla] Educatmn
1o Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent shall submit to the |
1 ‘Board or its designee, for prior approval, an appropriate program of 1emedial education related to
12 11 designated representative training, as requlred for licensure pursuaut fo Business and Profcbqlons
13 |t Code section 4053, The program of remedial education shall consist of at [east eight (8) hours,
']4 which shall be cOmp_leted within six (6) months at Respondent's ‘m'avn expense. The program, at a
15 | mm;mum must address cach of the following subjects:
16 (&) Knowledge and understanding of Ca lifornia law and federdl law relating to the
17 | distribtltlon of dangerous drugs and dangerous devices.
18 (B) leowlédée and undérs;anding of California law and federal law relating to the
19 || distribution of controlled ’su’.bs'tances.
20 1] (C) Knowledge and understanding of quality control systems. '
2I1 (DY Knowledge and understanding of the United States Pharmacopoeia standar&s relating
~99 || tothe safe storage and handling of drugq | '
23 (B} Knowledge and understanding of prescription tcrmmology, abbreviations, dosages,
24 and format. E
25 Faslure te tlmely submit or complelc the approved remedial education shall be considered a
2;5 | -violation of probation. The period of probation will be automatically extended until such remedial
27 || education is successfully completed and written proof, in a form acceptable to the Board, is
28 || provided to the Board or ts designee.

10
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Followiing the complcrion_ of cach course, the Roard or its designes may require the

2 i Respondent, athis ar her own expense, to take an approved examination to test the Ri:spondcnt's
3 | knowledge of the course. If the Respon‘den[ does not achieve a passing score on the examination, |
4 || this failure shali be considered a viclation of probation, Any such ckamination i‘aii_ufe shal}
5 require Respandent ta take another ccﬁu‘ge ,ap“p.rovcd by the Board in the same subject area.
6 | 17. Ethics Course |
) Within si§t'y {60) calendar da ys-of the efiective date of this deeision, Respondent shalt
8 || enrollin a course in ethigs, at Respondents expense, approved in advance by the Board or.its
0 || designee. Failure to zmtmre the course during the first year of paobat:on and complete it wuhm
10 | the sccond year of probation, is a violation of probation.
11 Respondent shall submit a certificate of completion to the Board or its designee within five
17 days after completing the course, . |
13 _ ACCEPTANCE
14 I have carefully read the above Stipuiated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
15. diseyssed it with my attorney, David Gurniek. I understand thé stipulation and thé effect it will
16 || have on my Designated Re;:reﬁmmive License. 1 enter into this Stipulated Settlczjﬁ?ll't and '
]7. Disciplinary Order voluntarity, kno‘wingl v, .a.nd intelligently, and agree to be bound by the
18 || Decision and .Ol_’dcl; of the Board of Pharmacy.
0| vaTED: 5 /};/ / [ = & v
K T SRBUSH TENELY¥AN
21 Respondent ‘ |
22 1 have read and fully discussed with Respondent Srbuhi ITo;ne‘lyan the terms and conditions
23 ‘and other matters contained in the above Stipulated Settlenient and Disciplinary Order. [ approve |
241 its form and content.
i Iy @ Sy e g
- ' DAV GURNICK'
26, Atterney for Respondent
wll owm |
28 H —
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Dated: (/&Z’/ﬂ? ‘_

LA2015603816"°
52410075, 3.docx

ENDORSEMENT

[ 3wbmitted forconsideration by the Board-of Pharmacy:

12

“The foreéoing-Stipulated Settiemeont and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

Respectﬁﬂly‘subniittdd,

XAVIER BECERRA o
Attorney General of California
ARMANDD ZAMBRANO :
Supervising Deputy Attorney General

Neaas

NANCY A KAISER

Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant
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Exhibit A

Acecusation No. 5636
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{| KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

2 || ARMANDO ZAMBRANO
Supérvising Deputy Atlorney General
3 |IINANCY AL KAISER
- - | Deputy Attorney Getieral .
4 || State Bar No, 152083
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
5 | Los Angeles, CA 96013
Telephone: (213)897-5794
.6 Facsimile; (213) 897-2804
71 Attorneys for Complainant
- 8 , BEFORE, THE
: ' " BOARD OF PHARMACY
9 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
10 STATE OF CALIFORNIA
A1 Inthe Mattcxl of the Fir st Amended- Accusatzon Case No. 5636
Againgt:
12
|| RXCHANGE CO., | . ‘ 1
13 || STEPHEN M. COSTA, Pr eszdeut, FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION i
MOHAMMAD M. SALEMIL, Director, : g
14 || and DRIC SRBURI TONELYAN !
|} 2545 N. Ontario Street
I5 i Burbank, CA 91504 5
16 || Wholesale Permit No. WLS 5795
17 || and
18 || SRBUHI TONELYAN :
219 E. Garfield Avenue., 4 ;
19 || Glendale, CA 91205 j
20 || Certificate Number EXC 18823
21 Respondents. |
22 1|
' Complainant alleges: :
23 - : =
PARTIES :
24 ' . ) o . {
. 1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this First Amended Accusation solely in lier :
25. ‘ ) ' '
official capaeity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Depattment. of Consumer
26 ; '
_ Affairs,
217
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1 2. Onorabout Auguét 19, 2011, the Boaxd of Pharmacy issued Wholesale Permit
9 1| Number WLS §795 to Nuline Pharmaceuticals {now known as RxChange Co.), which was -
'3 || located at 434 West Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204, with Stephen M. Costa, as owner and
" 4 1 President, and Srbuhi Tonelyan, as Designated Representative-in-Charge (Respondent:
5 || Wholesaler), On or about Au;gust 1, 2012, Respondeﬁt ‘Wholesaler (WLS 5795) changed its
6 || address of 1‘6(;01'6 with the Board from 434 West Broe{dway, Glendale; CA 91204 to 2545 N.:
7 || Ontario 8t, Butbanle, CA 91504, On or about March 8,2013, Nuline Pharmaceuticals changed its
8 || trade style name to. RxChangs Co. with.the. Board, Stbuhi T‘onely.aﬁl is and has been the
9 || Designated Representative-in-Charge (DRIC) of Respondent Wholesaler since August 19, 2011,
10 {} Stepher M. Costa is and has been the President of Respondent Wholesaler since August 19, 2011,
11 || Mohammad M. Salerhi is and has beer & Director of Respondent Wholesaler since Juty 15, 2013,
12 || Wholesale Permit number WLS 5795 was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the -
13 || chdrges brought herein and will expire on August 1, 2010, unless tenewed.
14 3. Omorabout September 24, 2006, the Board of Pharmacy issued original Certificate
15 || Number EXC 18823 to Srbul: Tonelyan to act as a Designated chreseiﬁativew:in—Charge
16 (Réspondent Tonelyan).! The license was in full force and effect at étll times relevant to the
17 )| charpes brought herein and will expire on September 1, 2016, unless renewed.
is | * JURISDICTION '
19 4, This First Aumended Accus;,ation is Ereught before the Board of Ph-am?acy (Board),
éo Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section
21 || references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) urtless otherwise indicated.
22 5.  Section 4‘80 of the Cods states: | ‘
| 23 | “(a) A board may deny a license vegulated by this code on the grounds that the applicant
24 |f has one of the i’ollowi.ng:
25 :
26 | ! Onor about Octalier 16, 2006, the Boaird issned Wholesalg Permit Number WLS 4964 to
Il Nuline Pharmaceuticals, jocated at 434 West Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204, Respondent
27 Tonelyan was Designated Representative-in-Charge for WLS 4964, On or about August 19,
28 2011, there was a change of ewnership of the business and WLS 4964 was canceled.
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1 (1) Been convieted of a criine, A conviction within the meaning of this section means
2 || aplea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following & plea of nolo contendere, Any action that a.
_ 3 || board is permitted to take following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the lime
4 || forappeal has ei-apseda,-,‘ or the judgment of conviction hias been affirmed on appeal, or when an
5 || order granting probation is made suspencﬁ‘ng the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a
6 || subsequent order under the provisions of Section 1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code,
] (2) Done any act involving dishonesty, fraud, or deceit with the intent to subs‘tqntially |
8 || benefit himself or herself or another, or substantially injure another:
9| {3)(A) Done any actthat if done by a iicentiate of the business or p‘rofession in
10 || question, would be grounds for suspension or revoeation of license.
11 | {B) The board may deny a license pursuant to this subdivision only if tl_le erime or
12 || aét is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession
13 || for-which application is rmade;
14 . Mb) Not»}fitﬁhsf&ﬂding any other provision of this code, a persen shall not be dended a
15 l{cense solely on the basis that he or she has been convicted of a felony ifhe or shefhasldbtained\ a
16 || certificate of rehabilitation under Chaptér 3.5 (commencing with Section 4852.01) 6f Title 6 of°
17 || Part 3 of the Peral Code or that he or she.lins been convieted of a misdemeanor if he ot she has _
18 W met all applicable regquirements of the criteria 6f rehabilitation developed by the beard to evaluate |-
19 || the rehabilitation of a person when considering the denial of a license under subdivision (a) of
20 il Section 482, ‘ :
él (e Not@ithstanding any otler provisiﬁns of this code, a pe1‘.saﬁ,sha]l notbe denied a.
22 |t license solely o the basis of a convictiop that las. been dismissed pursiant to Section 1203 .4,
23 || 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code. An app]i;;ant who has a con,yictgon that has been
;i4 | dismissed pursuant to Section 1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code shalj provide proof
25 || of the dismissal. . '
26 | “(d) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the ground that the applicant
27 || knowingly made a false statement of Tast that is required to be revealed in the application for the
28 l license,” .
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6. lSec«:ﬁicm 4300 of the-Code provides, in part, that every license issued by the Board is

subject to diseipline, including suspension or revocation,

P T

W =3 O

7. Section 4300.1 of the Code states;

"'T_he expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued li.c;anse by
operatien of law or By 01‘d§1' or decision of the board or a court of law, the Placement of a license.
on aretired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the hoard
of jurlsdiction to commence or proceed with any investigation of, or action or diseiplinary
proceeding against, the licensee orto render a decision suspending or revoking the license."

8. Séction 4301. of the Code states, in part; ‘

*The, board shall take action against any holder of a license who is-guilty of unprefessional
conduct. or whose ﬁcense has been préeured by fraud ormisrepresentation or issued by mistake,

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:
(f) The conumission of any act 'in{folving moral tmpitude,_dishoneéty, fraud, deceit, or
corruption, whether the act iz committed in the course of relations as a licensee. or otherwise, and

" whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not,

(g) Know ingly making ot signing any certificate or other document that falsely répresents

¢ the existence or nonexistence of a state of facts,

(i) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the United

States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

(I} The conviction of a.crime substantially related to-the qualifications, functions, and

| duties of a licensee inder this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13

(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled
substances or of a violation of the stafutes of this state regulating controlled substances or
dangefous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the

4
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 record of conviction shall be conciusive-evidence valy of the fact that the conviction occurred,

The board may inquire info the cireurmstances surfounding the-commission of the crime, in order

[T - S N = N, T - VORI,

I3
20
21
22
23
24

26

27 |

28

| corporation, or where conditions exist in relation to any officer or director of the corporation that

| would constitute grounds for disciplinary action against a licensee.”

to fix the degree of disciplivie or, in the cage _'o’f a convigtion not involving controlled substances_or
dz}ngerous drugs, to determine if the. conviction is. of ‘an offense substantially related to the
qualiﬁcat'ions, furictions, and duties of a licensee under this.chapter. A pleaor verdict of gnilty .6 r
a conviction following a plea of nolo confendere is deemed to be a conviction within the medninj :
of this provisien. The board ?may take 'aﬁ‘tio.ﬁ w.hex;t the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
judgmexit of conviction has been affirmed on appeél or when an order granting probation s made

suspending the imposition of sentence, imespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of

the Penal Cade allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to entera plea of not |

guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the aceusation, information, or

indictment,

{o} Vioi&tfng or attempting to violase, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or dbetting the’
violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or ferm of this chapter or of the applicable
federal and state laws and regulations governing phaimacy, including regulations eéta'islished by
the board or by any otlier state or federal regulatory agency. '

{p) Actions er-eonduct that would have wananted denial of 8 ficense.”

9, | 'Spction 4302 of the Code-_statcs:
“”L‘_];e boarcl. may deny, .su»spend% or revoke any license ofa corpération wthere condijtiogs,f

exist in relation to any persen holding 10 percent or more of the corporate stock of the

10, Section43 07, subdivision (8}, of the 'Gqc'lc states, in pertinent part:

“Any person who has beeﬁ denied a license or whose license has been revoked or is
under suspensiow, or who has -faile& o renew hisrgr hér' license while it was vnder suspension, of
who has been a mandger, administrator, owner, member, officer; director, associate, ot partaer of,
any partnership, corporation, firm, orassociation whose application for-a license has been denied

5
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or revoked, is under suspension or has bieen placed on probation, and while acting as the manager,

administrator, owner, mewber, officer, director, assoefate, or partner had knowledge of or

'kno_wingly_lmri‘ﬂpated in any conduct forwhich the license was denied,.revoked, suspended,.or:
placed on probation, shall be p‘.rohi'biteci from serving as a manager, administrator, owner,
member, officer, director, associate, or paitner of a licensee as follows:

(1) Where a probationary license is issued or where an eidsfing license is placed on
probation, this prokibition shall rermain in ef-ﬁéc’s for a period not to e’xc’eéd five yedrs.

(2) Where the license is denied or revoked, the proh'ibni-ﬁc'm shall ¢ontinue tntil the
license is issued or l*ei|1§ta-te¢l."

11, Section 4022 of the Code stages

“Dangerous drug’ or ‘dangerous deviee' means any diug or device unsafe for self-use in
(g

| humans or animals, and includes the following:

"(a) Any drug that bears the legend; ‘Caution; federal law prohibits dispensing without

{ prescription,” ‘Rx only,” or words of similar import,

*(1y) Any device that béars the statement; ‘Caution: federal law restricts this device to sale

' by ot onthe order of & . ‘R only,’ or words of similar import, the blank to be filled

| in with the designationof the practitioner licensed to use or order use-of the device.

"(c) Any-other ding or device that by federal orstate Iaw can be lawfully dispensed only oh.
prescription erfumished pusrsuant to Section 4006." ' ' ‘
12. Section 4059 of the Code sm'l'eé, inpart:

“{a} A person may not furnish any dangerous drug, except upon the prescription of a

physician, dentist, podiatrist, optomettist, veterinarian, or naturopathie doctor pursuant to Section |

|t 3640.7. A personrmay net furnish any dangerous device, exeept upon the prescription of a

physician, dentist, podiitrist, optometrist, vetérinarian, or naturopathic doctor pursuant o Section
3640.7.

"(b) This section does not apply to the furnishing of any dangerous drug ordangerous

"device by a manufacturer, wholesaler; or pharmacy to each other or to a physieian, dentist,

| podiairist, optometrist, veterinarian, or naturopathic doctor pursuant to Section 3640.7, orto'a
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laboratory under sales and purchase records that courectly give the date, the names and addresses

" of the supplier and the buyer, the drng or deviee, and its quantity: This section does not applyto

R - LY. T S TR
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the furnishing of any dangerous device by & manufacturer, wholesaler, or pharmacy to a physical

| therapisi-acting within the scope of his or her license under sales and purchase records that

correctly provicle_: the date the device is providad, the names and addresses of the supplier and the
buyer, a description of the device, and the quantity supplied.”

13, Section d.H}Sl of tl;e Code states, in part:

"(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition; or disposition of dangerous drugs
or dangerous devices shall be at all times during busi‘ness howrs open 'to.ingpeétion by anthorized
officers ofthe law, ahd shall be preserved for at least three years from the-date of making., A
current inventory shall be kept by every manuftcturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, veterinary

food-animal drug retailer, physician, dentist, podiatrist, veterinarian, laberatory, €linic, hospital,

Ainstitution, or establishment holding acwurently valid and unveveked certificate, license, permit,

registration, or exemption under Division. 2 (commencing with Section 1200) of the Health and

Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section 16000) of Division 9 of the Welfare and

| Institutions Code who maintains a stock of dangerous drugs or dangerous devices,

"(b) The L)Wllcr, officer, and ﬁart-ner of any phm‘macy,‘ wholesaler; or veterinary food-animal
drug retailer shal] be jointly responsible, with the pharmacist-in-charge or representative-ins
charge, for maintaining the records and inventory descibed in this seetion.”

14, Section 4105 of the Code states, in part:

“(3) All records or pther dosumentation of the acquisition and disposition of dangerous. -
drugs and dangerous devicés by any entity licensed by the board shall be retained on the lcensed

premises in a readily retrievable form.

“(¢) The records required by this section shall be.retained on the licensed premises for a

period of three years from the date of making,

A
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“(f) When 1*eqﬁested'b-y~ an authorized officer of the law or by an authorized representative
"2 1 of the board, th? owner, corporate officer, or manager of an entity licensed by the board shall ‘
_ 3 {| provide the board with the requested records within Hhree business days of the time the request

4 {| was made..,” '

5 15, Bection 4160 of the Code states, in part:

6 “(a) A person shall not act as a.whol'csal,er or third-party logistics provider of any dangerous |

7 || drug or dangerous device unless hie or she has obtained a license from the board.-

8 ’

“(c) (1) A separate license shall be required for each place of business owned or operated by

10 a-\lwholesalar or third-party logistics provider. Each place of business may only be issued a single
11 || license by the board, except as provided in paragraph (2). Each license shall be rénewer annuelly
.12 | and shall not be transferable,
13 " |
14 | “(d) Bvery wholesaler shall be supervised or managed by a designated repsesentative-in- i
15 |} charge. The desi gnated,1'eprésentative-in-oharge shall be 1'esléo1lsib'le for the wholesaler's
16 || compliance with state and federal laws governing wholesalers.” | ‘
‘1 7 16.  Section 4163 of'the Code states, in part:
18 “(a) A manufacturer, wholesaler; repackager, or pharmacy may not furnish-a clangths
19 || drugor clangerotis deviee to az unauthorized person.
20 '“'l(b) Dangerous drugs or dangerous devices shall be acdtxiréd from & person-authorized by
21 || law to possess or farnish dangerous drugs er dangereus devices, When the person acquiring the
29 || dargerous drugs or dangerous devices is.a wholesalor, the obligation of the whelesaler shall be
23 || limited to obtaining confirmation of licensure of those sources from whom it has not previously
24 f acquired dangerous drugs or dangerous-devices.”
25 I
26 || i
7 i
2% i
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17, Section4163.1 of the Code? states;

2 “It is the intent of' the Legislﬂtme that commencing en January 1, 2007, and contmumg

3 tlnough the' full Jmplementatlon of the pedlgiee requirernents specified by Section-4163,
4 manufacturers and wholesalers shall use best efforts to provide-in the most readily accessibie form

5 || possible, information regarding the manufacturer's specific relationships in the distribution of

6 || dangercus drugs with wholesaters.” |

7 | 18. Section 4169 of the Code states, in part"

3 “(a) A pefsert or entity shail not do any of the.following:
9 | ( 1) Purchase, trade, sell, warehouse, distribute, or transfer dangemus drugs or dangerous
10 devmes at wholesale th a persori or entity that is not 11c,f:nsed with the board.as a wholesaler,
i1 th1rcl~pa1 ty logistics provider, or phmmacy
12
13 (5) Fail to maintain records of the acquiisition or disposition of dangerous diugs or s
ia |l danggrou_s devices for at least three years.” .
15 REGULATIONS
i6 19. Cahfmma Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:
17 | "For tlie putpose of denial, suspension, o revocation of a personal or famhty Ticense
18 || pursuant to Division 1,5 (c.ommencing with Section 475) of the Business and P-rbif‘e_ssiong Code, n
19 {| crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a
20 || Heensee or registrant if to a substantial _d,:‘:gre;c it evidences present or potential unfitness of &
21 » licensee. or registiait to perform the functions anthorized by his, lieclmse ot registration in a manner
9 _coﬁsist'ent with the public health, safety, or welfare" -
VE ) 20, California Code of Regulations, title 16, sectfionl‘i"?'l& states:
'lg4 **Current Inventory’, as-used in Sections 4081 and 4332 of the Busingss qid Professions
25 || Code shall be considered to include complete acconntability for all dangerous drugs 'han;l]ect by
26 1 évmy licensee e,pum’eratcd in Sections 4{}8_1 and 4332,
27 | | ,
28 * Section 4163.1 was repealed as of '.Ta1_".|uaxry 1, 2015,

9
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1 “The controlled substances inventories required b'y Title.21, CFR, Section 1304 shall be
2 || available for ingpection upon request for at ieast. 3 years after the date of the inventory”
3 ' FEDERAL REGULATIONS
4 | 21, Code of Federsl Regulations, title 21, section 1301.11, subdivision (a) states:
5 “Bvery persen who manufactures, distributes, dispenses, impévts, or exp.dfts any controlled
6 || substance or who proposes to engage in thc;: manufacture, distribution; dispensing, importation or
7 {i exportation of any controlled substance shall obtain a registration [with the U.S. Diug
8 Eufofc’:emen? Admiﬁistrat‘i,on (DEA)] uriless excmpted by law or pursuant to §§ 1301.22 through
o || 1301.26 ' | |
10 22, Code 6? Federal Regulations, title 21, section 1301:12, subdivision () states:
. 11 “A separate registration is requived for each.principal place of business. er professional
12 || practice at one general physical location. where c,ontroile.d=su-bstauces- are manufactured,
13 | distributed, i—mpéi'ted;, exported, or dispensed by a person.”
14 COST RECOVERY
13 23, Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board-may request the
16 ac[minisﬁ'ative law judge to direct ii;:entiate- found tol]-aave commitied-a violation or violations of
17 the licensing act to, pey a sum notto exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
18 || enforcement of the case.
19 1
20 H
21 !
Y _ /)/.
2% - /H
2441 i
25 i
26 | i
27 | 1
28
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24. *  DRUG CLASSIFICATIONS |

1
_ 2 ||| Generic Name ' Dangerous Scheduled Tndications -
3 Drug Per = | Drug per Health & For Use '
- T Bus, & Prof, | Safety Code (FISC)
4 . i . Code § 4022 i
Carisoprodol’ _ Yes - | Not scheduled 1n Muscle
5 {|| tbrand nanie, Soma) California. Carisoprodol | relaxant
' : is a Schedule IV under
6 federal law per 21 CFR.
' ' : ! 1308.14(c)(6).
7 ||| Hydroeodone! Yes { Schedule 11 Paii
g Acetarninophen (APAP) Per HISC § 11055(b)(1)
(brand names. include Noxco, '
91 »Vicodin, and Lioréet) )
Lorazepam Yes Schedule IV | Anxiety
10 It (bremd name, Ativan) | Per HSC § 1057(D(16) |-
1 "7 oTpidem Yes ' Schedule TV Insommia
12 (non-barbiturate, noxn- Per HIC § 1057(d){(32)
12 ||f benzodizzepine sedative hypnotic) :
13 (brand name, Ambien)
14 | FACTUAL SUMMARY
15 25, Onor about Noventber 14,2013, a B’Uard.:inSpector coniducted a rouﬁn‘e inspection of
16 || Respondent Wliol-ﬁsalgas'“s facility, located at 2545 N, Ontario St., Burbank, CA 91504. The
17 || inspection tevealed that Respondent Wholesaler was purchasing dangerous drugs, iheliding
18 cor_ltrolied substances, from an unlicensed wholesaler broker, SCT RX Heaith, 1500 Walnut St
19 Philadelphﬁ, PA 19102 (SCT RX Health), Attimes tho'ée purchases were being ordered fiom
20 || dnd delivered to an unliceused prernises in California.
21 FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
22 || (Fallure to Comply with Record-Keeping Requiremen ts)
293 26. Respondent Wholesaler and Respondent Tonelyan are subject to disciplinary action
94 || under Section 4301, subdivisions (j) and (o), for violating sections 4081, subsection (a), and 4103 |
25 | and Californian Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718, in that,"while Respendent Tonelyan
a6 || was serving as the BRIC, Respondent Wholesaler failed to have all records of acquisition of all
27 * Drug abusers ave kuown to combing Soma with lyydrocodone to produce similar effects
2% to those of Hes‘oin_. -
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dangerous drugs open for inspection and preserved for at least three years from the making and -
failed.to mamtam complete accountability for all dangerous drugs.

a Dmmsz Novembel 14,2013, _inspection, Respondents provided the 111sp§§j;c11_‘.amh

i:h S b o

partial copies of purchase orders of dangerous drugs. ’ Specifically, Re‘spond'ent Wholesaler’s

Purchase Order .#70000'2335, dated July 19, 2012, refers to iirvoice # 54325-05 from SCT RX

He;}lth, dated July 10, 2012, but the purchase order does not match the reldted inveice. Invoice -

#54325-05‘,d00111nents an erder of 25 x 1000 farnotidine 20mg and 50 x 500 hydrocodone/apap - |

5/500mg, but the purchase order does not list famotidine or hydrocodone. Also, the bottom of ‘the"

pu1chase order document says "continued" and there is no dollar total on the document,
Respondent ‘Whelesaler either did not 1etam or have the- complete record avallable forreview by
the Board’s inspector.

'SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Pul chasing from Unlicensed Who]emier)
27,  Respondent Wholesaler and Respondent Tonelyan are Subj ect to d:sc1p1ma1y acifon
under Section 4301, subdivision (7), for violating Section. 4169, subdivision (a)(1), inthat, while

Respondent Tonelyan was serving as the DRIC, Respondent Wholesaler purchased controlied

-substances and/or dangerous drugs from SCT RX Health, an entity that is not licensed with the

board as a wholesaler, third-parly logistics provider, or pharmacy. The purchases are documented

by the foliowmg invoices:

a. . lavoice #54395»01 dated June 18, 2012, documented Respondent Wholesaler’s
putchase of 48 x 5000 fluoxetine 20mg from SCT RX Health.

b,  Invoice #543‘25;02 dated June 21,2012, documented Respondent Wholesaler’s

pmohase of 50 x 1000 carisprodol 350mg from SCT RX Health.

¢.  Invoice #54325-03, dated June 26,2012, documented Respondent Wholesalm s

purchase of 10 x 500 lhydrocodone/apap 1‘0#325 and 10 x 500 hydiocodone/apap 10/650,

1| meloxicam and Baclofen from SCT RX Health.

d. Iiwoi'ce #54325-04, dated July 10, 2012, documented Respondent Wholesaler’s.

: ]Julncﬁase of Baclofen, famotidine, folic acid lmg, Gﬂbaﬁentin, tramado.l_, 10 % 500

12
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-1 || hydrocodone/apap }0/325, 6 x 500 hydrocodone 10/500 and 8 x 500 hydrocodone 7.5/750, from
5 |l SCTRX Health |
3 e.  Inveice #54325-05, dated July 16, 2012, documented Respondent Wholesaler’s
4 i purchase of famotidine 20mg, citalopram 20mg; azithromyein, Fluoxetine 20mg,
5 hydrochloroltliﬁ'azi-de, .Hsinoﬁril 20mg, lorazepam lmg, omeprazole and 50 x 500
6| hydrocodone/apap 5/500, from SCT RX Health.
7. . Invoice #54325-06, dated July 17, 2012, documented Respondent Wholesaler’s
8 || purchase of 42 x 1000 carisprodo! 350mg, from SCT RX Health.
0 29 Invoice #5’43%—07, dated July.27, 2:0'12- documented Respondent Wholesaler’s
10 || purchase of bacloiren }01ng, 20 x 500 zolpidern 10mg, ranitidine 150mg, lbllplofeﬂ 600, folic acid-
l 11 | 2mg and 40 % 100 hydrocodone/apap 7. 5/325 from SCT RX Health. '
12 h~ Invoice #54325-08, dated August 3 2012,| documented Respondent Wholesaler's
13 || purchade of 36 x 500 'hycflﬁdce_cwnef’apap' 10/500, baclofen, famotidine, ]f.‘ol'ic acic-{ll-,l lisinopril,
14 || citalopram, ihupr ofen and meloxieam, from SCT RX Health. |
15 1, ' Tavoice #354325- 09 clated August 13, 2012 decumentet| Responclent Wholesalei's
16 puwhase of folic acid, tbuprofen, hSIIlQp! il, metfonmn 17100 hychocodone “7.5/325 ard 60 %
17 1l 508 hydrocodone/apap 7.5/500, froim SCT RX Health,
18 ‘- J. Invoice #545‘25-.1 0, dated September 1'3, 2012, doeumented Respondet Wholesaler's
" 19 || purchase of azithromyein, baciofen, citalopram, Famotidine, folic acid, fuiosamid'e, !
20 | hydrochlorethiazide, ibuprofen, lisinopril, ranitiding, tramadol, 30 x 100 'hydrocodlbnefapap
21 | 7.5/325, 30 % 500 hydrocodone/apap 5/500, 24 x 500 hydrecodene 7.5/500 and 20 x 1000
22 | causpﬁmdoi 350ing, from SCT RXHeallh
23 k. Tuveice #54325-11, dated Septcmbe1 27,2012, documented Respendent Wholesalen 8
24 purchase of ibuprofen, 6 x 500 hydrecodone/apap 10/325 and 6 x 500 hydlocodonc/apap ]0/500
25 || from SCT RX Health,
26 "
27 | 1
28 | i
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THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

1
2 {Unlicensed Activity)
3 28. _Respondent Wholesater and Respondent Tonelyan are subject to disciplinary action
4 under Sed'ti.oﬁ 4301, subdivision (), for .viol‘ating Seotioﬁ 4160, in that, while Respondent
5 |i Tonelyan was serving as the DRIC, Respondent Whelesaler engaged in unlicensed activity.
6 || Section 4160, subdivision (¢), piovides that a separate license shall be required for each place of
7 || business owned ot operated by a wholesaler, and that each license shall be rencwed annually and
8 || shall not be transferable. Specifically, o August 1, 2012, the Board approved a change of
g || Tocation for 'Re‘époﬂcien’t Wholesaler from their original address in Glendale, CA to 2543 N.
10 ff Ontarip St., Burbank, CA., Re_spondént Whelesaler’s records show that contrelled substances and
11 | dangerous drugs wete ordered and received by it at the Glendale address after Angust 1, 2012, as
12 || follows: ‘
13 a.  Invoice #54325-08, dated August 3, 2012, documenied Respondmt Wholesaler’s
i4 | pumhase of 36 x 500 hydrocodorne fapap 10500, baclofen, famotidine, folic acid, lisinopril,
15 || citalopram, ibuprofen and meloxicar, from SCT RX Health. The imioice indicated that the order
16 was billed to Respondent Wholesaler at 434 West Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204 and s‘iﬁ'pped to
17 Il Respondent Wholesaler at 434 Wesl Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204,
18 : b.  Invoice # 54325-09, dated August 13, 2012, documented Respondent Wholesaler’s
19 || purchase of folic acid, ibuprofen, lisinopril, metformin, 17 x 100 hﬁzd-mcodone 7.5/325 and 60 x
20 || 300 hydrocodone/apap 7.5/500, from SCT RX Health. The invoice indicated that the order was
:21 billed to Re'slaoﬁdenf Wholesaler at 434 Wesi Broadway, Glendale, CA. 91204 and shippéd,to _
22 ‘ Respondent Wholesaler at 434 West Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204, '
23 | ¢,  Invoice # 54325-10, dated Saptemb.er-l‘?:, 2012, documented Respondent
24 || Wholesdler’s purchase of azithremycin, baclofen, citalopram, famotidine, folic acid, furosemide,
25 hyd-rochloifoﬂiiazicle, ibuprofen, lisinoprii, mni.tidiue, tramadel, 30 x 100 hydrocodone/apap |
26 || 7.5/325,30 x 500 hy-dmcodoﬁa/apap 5/500, 24 x 500 hydrocodone 7.5/500 and 20 x 1000 i
27 || catisprode! 350mg, from SCT RX Health. The invoice indicated that the erder was billed to |
28 ' |
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‘1 |t Respondent Wholesaler at 434 West Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204 and shipped o Respondent
2 || Wholesaler at 434 West Bl'oad.way-, Glendnle, CA 91204,
. d. h‘woice# 54325-1 1 dated September 27, 2012, documented Respondent
4 || Wholesaler’s purchase of ibuprofen, 6 x 500 hydrocodonefapap 10/325 and 6 x 500
s Iiyd1'000d011§/apap 10/500, from SCT RX Health. The invoice indicated that the.order was billed
‘6 || to Respondent Whiclesaler at 434 West B‘roadway, Glendale, CA 91204 and shipped to
7 ' Respondent Wholesaler at 434 West Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204,
8 'FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
9 I (Unregistered Activity)
10 29.  Respondent Wholesaler and Respondent Tonelyan are subject to disciplinary action
11 Ik uﬂcle;' Section 4301, subdivision (oj, for vioiati'lig Code of Federal Regulations, title 21 . section
12 | 130111, subdivigion (a), in that, while Respondent Tonelyan was serving as the DRIC,
13' - Respondent Wholesaler ordered and received contrelled substances without a vatid DEA
14 ' registration. In order for a wholesaler’s place of business lo be registered with the DEA, it must be
15 | licensed by the eniity’s homs state,* Specifically, on August 1, 2012, Responflem Wholesaler
i G changed its aéldrgss with the Board from 434 West‘ B]‘O'ad-way, Glendale, CA 91204 to 2545 N,
17 || Ontario Street, Burbank, CA 91504 and: did not notify the DEA of its change of address.
18 |} Therefore, Respondent Wholesaler's DEA registration was considered invalid at the Gllenclale :
19 | location, because Respondent Wholesaler no longer had d California wholesaler’s license for that
: 20 |} location, and Respondeiit Whol’esa-l:_er was not registered with the DEA at the Busbank location, as- :
21 || it failed to notify the DEA of its change of address. 1{‘e§pondent Wholesaler’s orders and
29 | deliveries of gontrolled substances that were made without a valid DEA registration are
23 Il documented in the following invoices;
24 | i
25 | H
26 | 1
27 “gee2t U.S.C., §823 (DEA registration réquirements for distributors of controlled
58 | substanees). i
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a.  Invoice #54325-08, dated August 3, 2012, documented Respondent Wholesalei's

I
~ 2| purchase of 36 x 500 hydrocodone /apap 10/500 from SCTRx Health. The invoice provided that
"3 1l the order was billed to Respondent Who[esalér al 434 West Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204 and
4 || shipped to Respondent Wholesaler at 434 West Broadway, Glendale, CA 01204,
5 b, Invoice #54325-09, dated August 13, '?:0'12, c‘loéumeﬂted Resl':néndlént Wholesaler’s
6 “ purchase of [7 x 100 hydiocodone l7.5/~3’2'5 an_d' 60 x 500 hydrocodone/apap 7.5/5 0.6 from S'C.T Rex.
‘ 7 || Health. The invoice provided that {he.order was tolbe billed and .ship‘vped to Nuling |
; 8 || Pharmaceuticals, 434 West Bl-‘-OadW;I}f-, Glendale, CA 91204,
9 c. Invoice # 54325-10, dated September 13,2012, documented Respondent
10 || Wholesaler’s purchase of 30 x 100 hydrocodone/apap 7.5/325, 30 x 500 hydrocodt)nefabap 5/500,
11 || 24 x 500 hydrocodone 7.5/500 and 20 x 1000 carisprodol 350mg, from SCT Rx Health. The
| 12 || invoice provided that the order“ was billed and shipped to Respondent Wholesaler'at 434 West
i3 - Broadway, Glendale, CA 91204, .
14 | d.  Invoice #54325-11, dated September 27, 2012, documented Respondent ‘Wholesaler’s
15 || purchase of ibuprofen, 6 x.500 hydrocodone/apay 19/325 and 6 x 500 hydrocodorie/apap 10/500,
16 || frop SCT Rx Health. The invoice provided that the order was billed and shipped to Respondent
17 | Wholesaler ot 434 West Broadway, Glendale; CA 91204,
18 | FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
i9 (Faiiﬁre to Cotnply with Sale Pedigree Requ’irements)‘

‘ 20 | 30. Respondent .Wholesaler and Respondent Tonelyan are subj'ect to diseiplinary action
21 | under Section 4301, sl;ubdivision (i), for vi'olating Section 4163.1, in that they failed to prc,w‘-v.idé in
22 1'ead'113-ﬁ accessible form information regarding the manufacturer's specific relationships in the

23 distribution of dangerous drugs. Specifically, Nuline, 2545'N. (?ntavie St., Burbank, CA 91504
24 || sold dangetous drugs to pharmacies and oth;ar whelesalers and didt not provide pedigrees to the

25 | ',foilowing:

26 | a.  Invoice # 7245, dated August 1, 2013, to South East Coast Enterprises, located at 1035
27 Cantrél Ave., Goose Creek, $C 29445, was on a Nuline Pharmaceuticals invoice, 2545 N. ()_11‘&11'1;)“
zé ] St., Burbank, CA 91504 with DEA# RIN0419641. Ne pedigree was provided to customet,

16 .
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1 b.  Invoice#-6664, dated Tebruary 12, 2013, to DI;IA Pharmacy, 941 9‘Mesa.Rd. Houston, |
2 || TX 77028 was on a Nuline Pharm&c_euticals.invoi(.:e;‘ 2545 N. Ontario St., Burbank’-,f CA 91504
_ 3 || with DEA# RN0419:6_41. No pedigree was provided fo customer, _
4 c. Inveice# 7114, dated June 27, 2013, to Garden Grove Community Pharmécy located
5 || at 12665 Garden Grove Blvd,, Garden Grove, CA 92843 was on a Nuline Pharmacenticals
| 6 || inveice, 2545 N, Ontario St., Burbank, CA 91.504 with DEA# RING419641. No pedigres was.
‘7' provided to customer. | -
8 | | SIXTH CAUSE FORDIS'C'IPLIN-E
.9 (Failure to Ensure Complinnce)
10 31. Respondent Tonelyan is subject to di's_oiﬁlinaw‘ action unden,t?-ection 4301,
_. il | subdivision (j), for violating Section 4160, étibdivision‘ (d), in that she failed to c.ns.ufe Respondent
12 || Wholesaler’s complience \J;rith' state laws governing wholesalers. Comp.léinant refers to, and by
13 - this mferencel ncorporates, the allegations set forth above in paragraphs 25 through 30, as Fliou‘gh‘
14 || setforth fully her..ein‘ ‘ . |
15 SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
16 ; (Conviction of a Substantially IRelatec! Crime) -
17 32.  Respondent Wholesaler is subject to disciplinary .e_tc'ti'on under sections 4361_, _
.18 || subdivisions {Iy and (o}, and 4302, in conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16,
19 se’ctidn 1770; on the ,‘gro‘un‘dé of ullprofcss'i011al cond‘uct; in that Stephen M. Costa, the president
20 1 and owner of Réspondent RxChange Co., committed a substantially related crime, as follows;
21 a. Onorabout April 20, 2016, after a plea of guilty, Stephen M. Costa (Costa—)- was
22 || convicted of viqlaﬁﬁg ":I’itl‘.c 18, Utiited States Code, S'e;o?io'nkl 349 (corispiracy tb commit
23 || healthedre fraud), a felony, in the ¢riminal proceeding entitled USA v, Stephen M. Costa (SD
24 || Florida, 2013, Case No. 1:1 5;ér~2l 004-CMA-1). On or abouit April 26, 2016, the Court
25 || sentenced Costa to 35 months il feﬁel‘al.'lal‘i3011;. followed by 3 years of supervised release, and
26 || ordered him to pay $1,20(i,000 in restitution to Medi¢aid and a $10,000 fine.
all C ‘ -
28 i
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1 b.- The cimumsmmes underlyirng' the conviction are as follows: :
2 i, Durmg the charged conspiracy, from in or about Septembez 2008, thiough December | .
o 3 || 20t 3 Respondent s co-couspirators obtained quantities of expensive medicines suoh as those |
4 | used to treat asthma, psychtau ic Symptoms and HIV infections by buying them nom purported
_ I_s patients who had obtained them from retail pharmacies in New York City as Medicaid 5
6 || beneficiaries. These medicines were aggregated into quantities by co-conspirators, and Costa then |
7 || purchased them in quantity. '
8 il W.ith Costa’s knowledge, to maike the medicines re-marketable, the pharmacy labels
9 || 'with the patiéuts‘ identities were removed, and the bottleé-wéiﬁe cleaned to make them appear new
' 1'_(} instead of having been previensly disPeus‘ed, Costa incoipdrated’. ancll' used wholesale distribution |
11 || companies to sell the secor_xd—hand prescription drugs tQ'pharma.cies; As part of the schemie, 5
12 || Costa’s co-censpirators created fraudulent documentation to falsely show the medicines bought E
13 || onthe streets from individuals were, instead, new medicines being shipped through legitimate :
14 [} pharmaceutical distributors and kept in properiy controlled conditions. .
15 itl, Soie of the pharmacies did not know they were receiving illegally obtained, second-
16 || hand medicines, Mecl-ica-ic'l- retmbursed various pharmaciés for the sales of such medicineés o
17 || patients which the Medicaid pro gram would not have do_nel had the naturé of the medicines as
18 || repurchased and relabeled been known, '
19, | iv.  During the course of this scheme, the value of'the phal-m'lceutm'\l-s 1nv01Ved in
j(} Costa's illegal transactions was approximately §1.2 nrillion. Payments for these medicines, :
~ 271 (| wltimatety came from funds provided to the Medicaid program for the pur pose of plowdmg
22| medicines to low income patients, E
23 EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
54 (Dishonesty, fraud, or deceit) i
25 3.. Responden: Wholesaler is subject to disciplinary action urider Sections 4301,
26 || subsection (f), and 4302, of the Code, in thellt Costa committed dishonesty, fraud, or deeeit by
27 || conspiring to commit healthcare fraud. Complainant refers to, and by fhis reference .incorpoi‘ates,
28 (1 the éllegatiqns set forth above in paragraph 32, as though set forth fully herein.
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2 (Acts warranting denial of a license).

3 34.  Respondent Wholegsaler is subject to disciplinary action under seetion 4301,

4 || subsection (p), of the Code, in conjunction with section 480, subdivisions (2)(1), (2), and (3‘), in
5 that Costa engaged in c'oncluct.thal: would have warx:az‘lted denial of a license, as more fully set.

6 || forthin phrzagraphs 32 and 33, above.

7 DTHER MATTERS

8 35, ’ Pursuant tcf) Code section 4307, if discipline is imposed on Wholesale Pei'mi_t'

o i Number WLS 5795 issued to Respondent Pharmacy while Stephen M. Costa has been an officer
10 || and owner and hed knowledge of or knowingly participated in any conduct for which the licensee
11 || was discinlined, S‘teiahen M. Costa shall be gﬁx*oh‘ibited -ﬁ'omlserving as a manager, administrator,
iz i ‘owner, 111eﬁw.‘ber, officer, director, associate, or partner of a licensee for-five years 1I Wholesale '
13 Permif Number WLS.5795 is placed on probation or until Wholesale i’ermi-t Number WLS 5795
14 || isreinstated if it is 1‘6?01{6(1 . . |
15 36.  Pursuant to Code section 4307, if disé:ipl:iﬁe is imposed on Wholesale Permit
16 | Number WLS 5795 issued to Ras‘pondem “Wholesaler while Mohammad M. Salemi has been an
f 7 || officér and/or owner and had knowledge of or knowingly participated in any conduct for which
18 || the licensee was disciplined, Mohammad M, Salemi shall be prohibited from serving as a
19 || inanager, administrator, o;w"ner, member, officer, director, associate, or partner of a lcensee forr
20 || five years if Wholesale Permit Number WLS 5795 is placed on prabation or nntil Wholesale
21 {| Permit N.um‘ber WILS 5795 is reinstated i it is revoked.

2 i '
23 W

24 i

75 1

26 | i

27 i

28 |
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PRAYER

2 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters lierein alleged,
. 3 || and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: |

4 1. Revoking or suspending Wholesale Permit Number WLS 5795 issued fo RxChange

5| Cos ' '

6 2, Revoking or suslaendmg Certificate Number EXC, 18823 issued to Srhuhi Tonelyan;
7 3 Pmkubﬂmg, Stephen M., Costa 110111 serving as.a manage: administrator, owner,

8 || member, officer, director, associate, or partner of a licensee for five years if Wholesale Peririit

9 || Number WLS 5795 is placed on probation or until Wholesale Permit Number WLS 5795 is
10 || reinstated, 4s applicable, if Wholesate Perpit Number WLS 5795 issued to RxChange Cb. is
11 || zevoked;
12 4,  Prohibiting Mohammad M. Salemi from serving as a manager, administrator, owrer,

.13 || member, officer, director, assocmte or partner of a licensee for five years il Wholdsale Perniit
14 || Number WLS 5795 is placed on pmbaﬂon or until Wholesale Permit Number WLS 5795 is
15 | reinstated, as applicable, if Wholesale Permit Number WLS 5795 issued to RxChange Ce. is
16 || revoked;
1 7 5. Ordering RxChange Co. arid Srbubhi Toneljmn to pay the Board of Pharmacy the
18 || reasonabie costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and
19 || Professions Code section 125.3;
20 6. Taking such other and further action. as deemed necessary and proper,
21 : o _ )
/ / 1 /[(7 ‘ @m/u»x—f :
23 || DATED: Hh {g
VIRGINIA HEROLD ’

24 Bxecutive Officer

_ Board of Pharmacy
25 Department of Consumer Affairs

State of California
26 . Complainant
LA2015603816
27 | 61745223 _8.doc
28
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"~ BEFORE THE
: BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
' . STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended Accusation
Againsts

Case No. 5636

RXCHANGE CO,, o
STEPHEN M. COSTA President,
MOHAMMAD M. SALEMI Director,
and DRIC SRBUHI TONELYA.N

2545 N. Ontario Street ‘
Burbank, CA 91504

Wholesale Permit No. WLS 5795
SRBUHI TONELYAN

219 E. Gairfield Avenue., #4
Glendale, CA 91205

Certificate Number EXC 18823

Réspondents.

OAII No. 2016050685

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and D,isciplinéry Oi"der is hereby adopted by the Board

of Pharmacy, Department of Consumier Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.

This Decision shall become effective on

It is so ORDERED

TOR THE BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS






